Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council

Held at the Council Chambers, 86 Market Street, Mudgee on Thursday 3 October 2013, commencing at 6.59pm and concluding at 7.54pm.

PRESENT Cr D Kennedy (Mayor), Cr P Cavalier (Deputy Mayor), Cr EE Martens (AM),

Cr PA Shelley, Cr JP Thompson, Cr JK Weatherley, Cr JR Webb,

Cr L White.

IN ATTENDANCE General Manager (WL Bennett), Director Mid-Western Operations (B Cam),

Director Finance and Administration (C Phelan), Manager Statutory Planning (G Bruce), Manager Governance (I Roberts), Manager Health and Building

Date: 3 October 2013

(T O'Reilly), Town Planner (D Selems).

MEDIA Mudgee Guardian / The Weekly (R Murray), Radio 2MG (C Bassett & M

REPRESENTATIVES Heldon)

Item 1: Apologies

An apology was received for the absence of Councillor MB Walker.

374/13 MOTION: Thompson / Martens

That the apology for the absence of Councillor MB Walker be accepted and

leave of absence be granted.

The motion was put and carried.

Item 2: Disclosure of Interest

There were no disclosures of interest.

Item 3: Confirmation of Minutes

375/13 MOTION: Cavalier / Thompson

That the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting held on 18 September 2013

(Minute Nos. 353/13 to 373/13) be taken as read and confirmed.

The motion was put and carried.

Item 4:	Matters in Progress	3
---------	---------------------	---

Noted.

Page 1 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council h	eld on Thursday 3 October 2013.
Mayor	General Manager

Item 6: General Business

- 6.2 REPORTS TO COUNCIL
- 6.2.2 DA0327/2013 EXTENSION OF AN EXISTING SWIM SCHOOL (RECREATION FACILITY), LOT 2 DP 533466, 87 SHORT STREET, MUDGEE

GOV400029, A0100056, P131706

Date: 3 October 2013

DEFERRED COMMENCEMENT

This is a deferred commencement condition in accordance with Section 80(3) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and this consent shall not operate until it has been complied with to the satisfaction of Council.

376/13 MOTION: Shelley / Cavalier

That:

1. A Building Certificate issued under Section 149A-E of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, for all Building works located onsite in association of the Swim School (Facility) is to be obtained from Council. This includes, but not limited to, the submission of a Structural Engineers Report on all the existing buildings to be prepared by a registered Structural Engineer, an identification survey and any building over Council's sewer main or a boundary rectified.

This condition is to be complied with within six (6) months of the date of determination.

APPROVED PLANS

 The development is to be carried out generally in accordance with the stamped submitted plan and the Development Application received by Council, except as varied by the conditions listed herein. Any minor modification to the approved plans will require the lodgement and consideration by Council of amended plans. Major modifications will require the lodgement of a new development application.

GENERAL

2	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	roved plans the structure is to be located and/or any water and sewer mains in Policy.
Page 2 of the Minutes of the	he Ordinary Meeting of Council he	eld on Thursday 3 October 2013.
Mayor		General Manager

- 3. All building work must be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the National Construction Code and the adopted Australian Standards referenced in the Building Code of Australia.
- 4. All plumbing and drainage work must be carried out by a licensed plumber and drainer and must comply with the requirements of the Plumbing Code of Australia.
- 5. The Facility (swimming pool) is to comply with the requirements of the Public Health Act 2010 and its subsequent Regulations.
- 6. For every 12 month period after the issue of the Final Fire Safety Certificate the owner/agent of the building must provide the Council with a copy of an Annual Fire Safety Statement certifying that specified fire safety measures is capable of performing to its specification.

PRIOR TO THE CARRYING OUT OF WORKS

- 7. Prior to the commencement of any construction works, the following provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the Act) are to be complied with:
 - A Construction Certificate is to be obtained in accordance with Section 81A(2)(a) of the Act.
 - A Principal Certifying Authority is to be appointed and Council is to be notified of the appointment in accordance with Section 81A(2)(b) of the Act.
 - Council is to given at least 2 days notice of the date intended for commencement of building works, in accordance with Section 81A(2)(c) of the Act.
- 8. A sign shall be erected in a prominent position on the premises on which the erection or demolition of a building is being carried out showing:
 - the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - stating that unauthorised entry to the premises is prohibited,
 - showing the name of the builder or other person in control of the premises and a telephone number at which the builder or other person may be contacted outside working hours. The sign shall be removed when the erection or demolition of the building has been completed
- All mandatory inspections required by the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 and any other inspections deemed necessary by the Principal Certifying Authority being carried out during the relevant stages of construction.

during the relevant stages of con-	struction.
10. Construction work noise that is a restricted to the following times:	audible at other premises is to be
Page 3 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on The	ursday 3 October 2013.
Mayor	General Manager

- Monday to Saturday --7.00am to 5.00pm
- No construction work permitted on Sundays or Public Holidays.
- The strength of the concrete used for the reinforced concrete floor slab must be 25MPa (N25).
- The site must be provided with a waste enclosure (minimum 12. 1800mm x 1800mm x 1200mm high) that has a lid or secure covering for the duration of the construction works. The enclosure is to be emptied periodically to reduce the potential for rubbish to be blown from the site. The Council encourages the separation and recycling suitable of NOTE: ALL WASTE GENERATED FROM THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS IS TO BE CONTAINED ON-SITE.

CARPARKING CONSTRUCTION

13. Twenty (20) rear to kerb car parking spaces are to be line marked with appropriate parking signs are to be installed in the street and no "parking signs" provided adjacent to the site and adjoining sites driveway crossovers. All works are to be done at the full cost developer. the Note: This will require approval by Council's Local Traffic Committee and Council's Development Engineer should be contacted in this regard.

DURING THE USE OF THE FACILITY

- The Facility is approved for up to 20 clients using the Facility at any one time.
- The Facility is to be completely enclosed by an approved 15. childproof fence having a minimum height of 1.2 metres, measured on the outside with a maximum clearance under the fence of 75mm. An approved self-closing and self-locking gate is to be provided.
- The Facility is to be used and operated as not to cause any 16. amenity issues with the neighbouring properties, particularly in regard to noise.
- 17. The swimming pool and associated structures are to comply with the requirements of the Swimming Pools Act 1992 and its associated Regulations.

		FOOD CONDITIONS	
	18.	The food premise of the Facility is t The premises will be subject to inspe fee will be payable.	
Page 4 of the Minutes	of the	Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Thursda	y 3 October 2013.
Mayor			General Manager

19. The premises shall, at all times, be operated and maintained in accordance with Food Safety Standards 3.1.1, 3.2.2 and 3.2.3 prescribed in chapter 3 of the Australia and New Zealand Food Standards Code.

PRIOR TO ISSUE OF AN OCCUPATION CERTIFICATE

- 20. A report be submitted from a practising and registered Structural Engineer certifying the structural sufficiency of the building including all detached structures associated with the development to ensure that they comply with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia.
- 21. A privacy screen of sufficient height and width shall be erected on the rear boundary of the development to screen the development and its activities.
- 22. All car parking and sign posting works are to be completed within six months of date of determination.

The motion was put and carried with Councillors voting as follows:

Councillors	Ayes	Nayes
Cr Cavalier	/	
Cr Kennedy	/	
Cr Martens	/	
Cr Shelley	/	
Cr Thompson	/	
Cr Weatherley	/	
Cr Webb	/	
Cr White	/	

Page 5 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Thursday	/ 3 October 2013.
Mayor	General Manager

Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

Council's Auditor Mr John O'Malley from Intentus Chartered Accountants presented the Annual Financial Statements for 2012/13 and answered questions from Councillors.

Item 5: Mayoral Minutes

There was no Mayoral Minute.

Item 6: General Business (cont.)

6.1 NOTICES OF MOTION

There were no Notices of Motion.

6.2 REPORTS TO COUNCIL (cont.)

6.2.1 PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2012/13

GOV400029, A0100056, FIN300066

377/13 MOTION: Cavalier / Weatherley

- 1. That the report by the Director, Finance & Administration on the Presentation of Financial Statements 2012/13 be received; and
- 2. Council endorse Intentus Chartered Accountants (Mr John O'Malley) as Council's auditor.

The motion was put and carried.

6.2.3 MA0016/2014 PROPOSED TAXI SHELTER – 83-85 MORTIMER STREET, MUDGEE

GOV400029, A0100056, P0199662

378/13 MOTION: Shelley / Weatherley

- the report by the Town Planner on Modification Application No. 0016/2014, Proposed Taxi Shelter at 83 – 85 Mortimer Street, Mudgee be received; and
- 2. Modification Application No. 0016/2014, Proposed Taxi Shelter at 83 85 Mortimer Street, Mudgee be approved, subject to the following conditions detailed below:

Page 6 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Thu	irsday 3 October 2013
rage of the Mindles of the Gramary Meeting of Godner Held on The	disday 5 Colober 2015.
Mayor	General Manager

APPROVED PLANS

- Development is to be carried out generally in accordance with the stamped plans submitted to Council by Sundai Designs, Drawing No 358MWR-01 Issue C and dated July 2013, except as varied by the conditions listed herein. Any minor modification to the approved plans will require the lodgement and consideration by Council of amended plans. Major modifications will require the lodgement of a new development application.
- 2. The development shall fully comply with the provisions of Council's Development Control Plan "Design for Accessibility". Details of compliance specially addressing the policy shall be provided with an application for Construction Certificate.
- 3. Prior to commencing any construction works, the following provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (the 'Act') are to be complied with;
 - a) A Construction Certificate is to be obtained in accordance with Section 81A(2)(a) of the Act.
 - b) A Principal Certifying Authority is to be appointed and Council is to be notified of the appointment in accordance with Section 81A(2)(b) of the Act and form 7 of schedule 1 to the Regulations.
 - c) Council is to be given at least two days notice of the date intended for commencement of building works, in accordance with Section 81A(2)(c) of the Act and Form 7 of Schedule 1 to the Regulations.
- A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any work site on which involved in the erection or demolition of a building is carried out;
 - a) stating that unauthorized entry to the work site is prohibited, and
 - b) showing the name of the person in charge of the work site and a telephone number at which that person may be contacted outside working hours.
- 5. If the work involved in the erection/demolition of the building;
 - a) is likely to cause pedestrian or vehicular traffic in a public place to be obstructed or rendered inconvenient, or
 - b) building involves the enclosure of a public place
 A hoarding or fence must be erected between the work site
 and the public place. If necessary, an awning is to be erected,
 sufficient to prevent any substance from, or in connection
 with, the work falling into the public place. Any such
 hoarding, fence or awning is to be removed when the work
 has been completed.

foot	ings shall be de	esigned by	•	•
the Ordina	ary Meeting of Cou	ncil held on Th	nursday 3 Octob	er 2013.
				General Manager
	foot mus	6. When foundations footings shall be do must be notified in v	6. When foundations are excave footings shall be designed by must be notified in writing.	6. When foundations are excavated, if fille footings shall be designed by a Structural E

7. Construction work noise that is audible at other premises is to be restricted to the following times:

Monday to Friday - 7.00am to 6.00pm

Saturday - 8.00am to 1.00pm

No construction work noise is permitted on Sundays or Public Holidays.

- All building work must be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Building Code of Australia, the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979 and Regulations and the relevant Australian Standards.
- 9. All mandatory inspections required by the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act and any other inspections deemed necessary by the Principal Certifying Authority being carried out during the relevant stage of construction.
- 10. If any aboriginal artefacts are uncovered or identified during construction earthworks, such work is to cease immediately and the local aboriginal community and National Parks and Wildlife Service are to be notified.

(Note: A suitably qualified person is required to be present during earthworks to identify whether any artefacts were uncovered).

PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

- 11. A set of structural drawings including paving treatment and levels are to be referred to Council's Access Committee for approval.
- 12. Engineering plans of any stormwater extensions are to be submitted to and approved by Council or an Accredited Certifier prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

A detailed engineering design supported by plans, and an "Autocad compatible" Plan, (in dwg format including pen-map), material samples, test reports and specifications is to be prepared in accordance with AUS-SPEC #1 (as modified by Mid Western Regional Council) and the conditions of this development consent. The engineering design is to be submitted to and approved by Council or an Accredited Certifier prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate.

13. A Traffic Control Plan (TCP) completed by a "Certified Person" for implementation during works is to be submitted to Mid Western Regional Council prior to any work commencing.

ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION

14. The driveway to the service station, is to have a minimum width

14	sufficient to allow man accordance with Roads	noeuvring access for	heavy vehicles in
Page 8 of the Minutes of the	e Ordinary Meeting of Council he	eld on Thursday 3 October	· 2013.
Mayor			General Manager

with a hard standing, all weather material and must be maintained in a satisfactory condition at all times.

15. Vehicular entrances comprising kerb laybacks (where roll kerb and gutter does not exist) and concrete footway crossings are to be provided to the development. These should be constructed in accordance with Aus-Spec #1 and the appropriate Council standard drawings including M524-Urban Access, M526-Industrial Access, M594-Kerb & Gutter Layback.

Inspections - Concrete must not be poured until the excavation, formwork and reinforcing has been inspected by Council. The contractor/owner must arrange an inspection by contacting Council's Development Engineer between 8.00am and 4.00pm Monday to Friday, giving at least twenty four (24) hours notice. Failure to have the work inspected may result in the access being removed and reconstructed at the contractors/owners expense.

- 16. All earthworks, filling, building, driveways or other works, are to be designed and constructed (including stormwater drainage if necessary) so that at no time will any ponding of stormwater occur on adjoining land as a result of this development.
- 17. All stormwater runoff from this development is to be conveyed to Councils existing drainage system.
- 18. Adequate site distances from the driveway to the service station must still be maintained in accordance with the Roads & Traffic Authority standards. This includes trimming of trees to a safe height so as to maximise sight distances.
- 19. The building shall not be occupied or used until an Occupation Certificate has been issued.

The motion was put and carried with Councillors voting as follows:

Councillors	Ayes	Nayes
Cr Cavalier	/	
Cr Kennedy	✓	
Cr Martens	✓	
Cr Shelley	✓	
Cr Thompson	/	
Cr Weatherley	/	
Cr Webb	/	
Cr White	/	

Page 9 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Thursday	ay 3 October 2013.
Mayor	General Manager

6.2.4 REVIEW – COMPREHENSIVE DCP 2013 – DRAFT DCP AMENDMENT NO.1

GOV400029, A0100056, A0420143

Date: 3 October 2013

379/13 **MOTION:** Shelley / Cavalier

That:

- 1. the report by the Manager Statutory Planning on the Review of the Comprehensive DCP 2013 be received;
- 2. the Draft Development Control Plan Amendment No.1 be placed on public exhibition for the statutory period of 28 days;
- 3. a further workshop be held with practitioners during the exhibition period.
- 4. following the conclusion of the public exhibition period a report be presented back to Council for consideration.

The motion was put and carried.

6.2.5 RYLSTONE AERODROME DEVELOPMENT – PAYMENT OF FEES AND CHARGES

GOV400029, A0100056, P1463461

380/13 MOTION: Shelley / Webb

That consideration of this matter be deferred until the Council Meeting on 16 October 2013.

The motion was put and carried.

6.2.6 MONTHLY BUDGET REVIEW FOR AUGUST 2013

GOV400029, A0100056, FIN300062

381/13 MOTION: Weatherley / Cavalier

- 1. the report by the Director, Finance & Administration on the Monthly Budget Review for August 2013 be received; and
- 2. the 2013/14 Operational Plan be amended in accordance with the variations as listed on pages 1 of the August 2013 Monthly Budget Review 2013/14 Operational Plan/Delivery Program, and reproduced in the report below.

reproduced in the report below.	
The motion was put and carried.	
Page 10 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Thurse	day 3 October 2013.
Mayor	General Manager

GOV400029, A0100056, A0140201

Date: 3 October 2013

382/13 MOTION: Shelley / White

That:

- the report by the Financial Accountant on the Financial Assistance Applications be received;
- 2. Council provide financial assistance to the following applicants in accordance with the criteria and guidelines of the Financial Assistance Policy, subject to those requirements being met, with the funding from the general financial assistance vote:

Twin Town Players Inc \$660 Dance with Attitude \$400

 Council waive the bond of \$550 payable by Twin Town Players Inc to hire the Rylstone Hall. Bond to be payable from Financial Assistance budget if required.

The motion was put and carried.

6.2.8 KANANDAH RETIREMENT LTD – REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

GOV400029, A0100056, A0140201

383/13 **MOTION:** Weatherley / Cavalier

That:

- 1. the report by the General Manager on the Kanandah Retirement Ltd Request for Financial Assistance be received;
- 2. Council refer any contribution to the Kanandah Retirement Ltd to be considered as part of the September Quarterly Budget Review.

The motion was put and carried.

6.2.9 LANES IN GULGONG

GOV400029, A0100056, R0790192

384/13 **MOTION:** Thompson / Cavalier

- 1. the report by the Manager Technical Services on the Lanes in Gulgong be received;
- 2. Council go through the road naming process for the lanes referred to as Un-named Lane 1 through 4 as depicted on the maps attached;

Page 11 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Thursday	3 October 2013.
Mayor	General Manager

- Date: 3 October 2013
- 3. Council include the following Gulgong roads in the Roads Asset Management Plan as maintained roads:
 - Un-named Lane 1 150m long off Bulga St parallel to Mayne St
 - b. Un-named Lane 2 230m long between Wenonah and Bowman Streets
 - Un-named Lane 3 190m long between Lynne and White Streets
 - d. Un-named Lane 4 330m long between Rouse St and Lynne St
 - e. Collins Lane 150m long between White St and Robinson St.

The motion was put and carried.

6.2.10 MUDGEE SEWERAGE AUGMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT A0100056, A0100055, F0740001

385/13 MOTION: Shelley / White

That the report by the Business Manager Services on the Mudgee Sewerage Augmentation Progress Report be received.

The motion was put and carried.

6.2.11 MUDGEE SHOWGROUND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

GOV400029, A0100056, F0650007

386/13 MOTION: Webb / Cavalier

That:

- 1. the report by the Director, Mid-Western Operations on the Mudgee Showground Management Committee be received;
- 2. Council recognise the Mudgee and District Working Equitation (MADWEQ) as a regular user of the Mudgee Showground
- Council approves and put onto public exhibition fees for 30 days the following new fees and charges Security Bond - MADWEQ Practice Day \$150 per annum Hire Fees - MADWEQ Practice Day \$100 per event
- 4. Council recognises the new fees and charges at the expiry of the public exhibition period if no submissions are received.

The motion was put and carried.

Page 12 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held	on Thursday 3 October 2013.
Mayor	General Manager

6.2.12 NOXIOUS WEEDS ADVISORY COMMITTEE

GOV400029, A0100056, A0130077

387/13 MOTION: Thompson / Webb

That:

- 1. the report by the Noxious Weeds Administrator on the Noxious Weeds Advisory Committee be received;
- 2. the minutes of the Noxious Weeds Advisory Committee held on Monday 2 September 2013 are noted.

The motion was put and carried.

6.2.13 TOWN ENTRANCE SIGNS

GOV400029, A0100056, R0790215

MOTION: Martens / Thompson

That:

- 1. the report by the General Manager on the Town Entrance Signs be received;
- 2. Council not proceed with the new town entrance signs at this time and that the moneys re-allocated as part of the September Quarterly Budget Review.

388/13 **AMENDMENT:** Weatherley / Cavalier

That:

- 1. the report by the General Manager on the Town Entrance Signs be received:
- Council not proceed with the new town entrance signs at this time and that the moneys re-allocated as part of the September Quarterly Budget Review; and
- 3. New town entrance signs be listed for consideration in conjunction with budget considerations for 2014/15

The amendment was put and carried and on being put as the motion was again carried.

Page 13 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of C	Council held on Thursday 3 October 2013.
Mayor	General Manager

The motion was put and carried.

Mayor

General Manager

6.2.14 LOCAL TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES 10 SEPTEMBER 2013 GOV400029, A0100056, A010009

389/13 **MOTION:** Webb / Thompson

- 1. the report by the Manager, Development Engineering on the Local Traffic Committee Minutes 10 September 2013 be received;
- 2. Bocoble Road "Reduce Speed" warning sign be installed on Bocoble Road only prior to the Stop Sign Ahead on Bocoble Road:
- Queens Pinch Road the Queens Pinch Road 'intersection ahead' signs indicate the main priority of the road.
- 4. Henry Lawson Drive
 - the "Give Way" signs and the advanced warning (symbolic) Give Way Ahead sign on the southern approach of the one-lane bridge over Pipe Clay Creek on Henry Lawson Drive be relocated so that they are on the northern approach of the bridge and prior to the Give Way sign being changed a public education program be undertaken;
 - b) the residents along Henry Lawson Drive be consulted as per the recommendation in the report; and
 - c) a copy of the Plan be forwarded to the Roads and Maritime Services for review of appropriate signage.
- 5. Intersection of Burrundulla and Rocky Waterhole Roads -
 - the works requests to move the priority cross roads signage (W2-1) from Burrundulla Rd to Rocky Waterhole Rd and remove small tree obscuring the Give Way ahead be noted; and
 - b) linemarking at the intersection be upgraded to be in accordance with RTA Delineation: Section 6 Transverse Markings.
- 6. Mudgee Brewing a loading zone of one parking space from 9am to 5:30pm Monday to Friday and 9am to 12pm on Saturdays be installed in front of the Mudgee Brewing Co. in Church Street, between Market and Short Streets Mudgee.
- 7. Church Street "No Parking" signs be installed at the driveways of 166 and 168 Church Street.

	_
Page 14 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Thursday 3 October 2013.	

6.2.15 REGISTER OF RETURNS DISCLOSING INTERESTS OF COUNCILLORS AND DESIGNATED PERSONS

GOV400029, A0100056, A0110004

Date: 3 October 2013

General Manager

390/13 MOTION: Shelley / Cavalier

That:

- the report by the Manager Governance on the Register of Returns disclosing interests of Councillors and Designated Persons be received; and
- 2. the Register of Returns disclosing the interests of Councillors and designated persons be tabled and it be noted that all Returns were submitted by the return date.

The motion was put and carried.

Mayor

Item 7: Urgent Business Without Notice

There was no Urgent Business Without Notice

Item 8: Confidential Session

391/13 **MOTION:** Cavalier / Shelley

That pursuant to the provisions of Section 10 of the Local Government Act, 1993, the meeting be closed to the public.

Following the motion to close the meeting being moved and seconded, the Manager Governance announced that the following matter would be considered in confidential session and the reason why it was being dealt with in this way.

<u>Subject:</u> Acquisition of Land Off Fairydale Lane Caerleon

The reason for dealing with this report confidentially is that it relates to information that would, if disclosed confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom Council is conducting business in accordance with Section 10A(2)(c)of the Local Government Act, 1993.

Discussion of this matter in an open meeting would be, on balance, contrary to the public interest as it could prejudice Council's negotiations.

Following an enquiry from the Mayor, the Manager Governance advised that there were no written representations in respect of this matter and that no person in the gallery wished to make verbal representations.

The motion was put and carried.	
Page 15 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on Thursday 3 October 2013.	

8.1.1 ACQUISITION OF LAND OFF FAIRYDALE LANE CAERLEON GOV400029, A0100056, P0596011

392/13 **MOTION:** Weatherley / Cavalier

- the report by the Revenue & Property Manager on the Acquisition of Land Off Fairydale Lane Caerleon be received;
- 2. Council approves the purchase of approximately 1.712 Ha of land identified as Railway Line Buffer land, currently being part of allotment 5 DP 1099321 and zoned for Public Recreation RE1, located at 74 Fairydale Lane Caerleon at a cost of \$150,000 inclusive of GST (if any) for the purpose of construction of pedestrian/cycle ways, roadway, facilitation of water infrastructure and other community purposes; and
- Council will pay the costs associated with the subdivision of the land, the registration of the new Deposited Plan, and the vendor's and Council's relevant legal costs for the transfer of the ownership of the land; and
- 4. Council will pay for the materials and construct a 1.2 metre Rural Wire fence along the Railway Line Buffer land boundary and Council will relocate a gate that is currently located on the eastern end of the Railway Line Buffer land fronting Fairydale Lane; and
- 5. Council will extend the sewer line north across Fairydale Lane to the boundary of allotment 5 DP 1099321 at no cost to the vendors; and
- 6. the General Manager be delegated the authority to sign all documents to complete the purchase; and
- 7. Council authorises the affixing of the Common Seal to all documents necessary to complete the purchase; and
- 8. upon transfer of title to Council, public notice be given of the intention to classify the land as "Operational" and should Council not receive any submissions during the 28 day notification period, the land be so classified; and
- 9. Council amend the 2013/14 Operational Plan/Delivery Program budget to reflect the estimated total expenditure of \$184,700 to be funded from the Land Development Reserve.

The motion was put and carried.		
Page 16 of the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council held on T	hursday 3 October 2013.	
Mayor	General Manager	

General Manager

Mayor